ZONING, PLATTING & ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ZPAC) January 7, 2020 – Approved Meeting Minutes

PBZ Chairman Matthew Prochaska called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

Present:

Matt Asselmeier – PBZ Department
Meagan Briganti – GIS
David Guritz – Forest Preserve
Brian Holdiman – PBZ Department
Fran Klaas – Highway Department
Commander Jason Langston – Sheriff's Department
Matthew Prochaska – PBZ Committee Chair
Aaron Rybski – Health Department

Absent:

Megan Andrews – Soil and Water Conservation District Greg Chismark – WBK Engineering, LLC

Audience:

Anne Vickery, Dan Kramer, Mike Cook, and Ron Smrz

AGENDA

Mr. Guritz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Klaas, to approve the agenda as presented. With a voice vote of all ayes, the motion carried unanimously.

MINUTES

Mr. Guritz made a motion, seconded by Commander Langston, to approve the November 5, 2019, meeting minutes. With a voice vote of all ayes, the motion carried unanimously.

PETITIONS

Petition 19-34 Ronald Smrz on Behalf of the Ronald Smrz Trust

Mr. Asselmeier stated that the changes from the last time the Petitioner appeared at ZPAC were that the site had been reduced to space for fifty-one (51) parking stalls, the new hours of operation would be from 6:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m., six (6) new light poles would be installed, seven (7) evergreens would be planted southeast of the parking area, and the Petitioner would monitor the site for motor vehicle related leaks and remove the contaminated gravel.

Mr. Asselmeier asked Mr. Smrz how he would control the parking area in relation to the hours of operation. Mr. Smrz indicated that the lock for the gate would have a timer.

A stormwater permit will be required, if the special use permit is approved.

Commander Langston asked about access for first responders to the gated area. Mr. Smrz said that he would give a passcode to the Sheriff and local fire protection district.

No offices and no restroom facilities would be onsite.

Mr. Klaas made a motion, seconded by Mr. Rybski, to recommend approval of the proposal.

Ayes (8): Asselmeier, Briganti, Guritz, Holdiman, Klaas, Langston, Prochaska, and Rybski

Nays (0): None Present (0): None

Absent (2): Andrews and Chismark

The motion passed. The proposal will go to the Kendall County Regional Planning Commission on January 22, 2020.

Petition 19-37 John Dollinger on Behalf of Hansel Ridge, LLC

Dan Kramer, Attorney for the Petitioner, explained his client was purchasing approximately eight (18) acres for the athletic facility and indoor and outdoor storage facility. East of the proposed storage facility, approximately three point five (3.5) acres would be left vacant for future commercial development.

Mr. Kramer felt that the proposed uses would complement educational uses and retail uses.

Mr. Kramer acknowledged the traffic concerns at the intersection of Route 52 and County Line Road. The busy time for the athletic facility would be between the end of October and the beginning of spring. Games would occur the entire weekend. The Petitioners would like to start construction in the spring and be fully operational by fall. A traffic study was forthcoming. He believed that it would be difficult to have a left-turn lane going north. Traffic could be directed down Baltz Road. A view corridor could be considered.

Mr. Asselmeier read an email from the Village of Shorewood. The proposal will be reviewed at the Shorewood Planning Commission meeting in February 2020.

Mr. Rybski made a motion, seconded by Ms. Briganti, to forward the proposal.

Ayes (8): Asselmeier, Briganti, Guritz, Holdiman, Klaas, Langston, Prochaska, and Rybski

Nays (0): None Present (0): None

Absent (2): Andrews and Chismark

The motion passed. The proposal will go to the Kendall County Regional Planning Commission on January 22, 2020.

<u>Petition 19-38 John Dollinger on Behalf of Hansel Ridge, LLC and Jason Shelley on Behalf of Goproball, LLC Mr. Kramer explained the structure of the domed athletic facility.</u>

Mr. Kramer believed that the proposed use will work well with the adjacent school property and nearby residential developments.

Approximately eight (8) fastball teams train at the company's existing facility and nine (9) additional teams are planned to be added at this proposed facility.

Ms. Vickery asked the square footage of the dome. Mr. Kramer said that the dome is approximately eighty thousand (80,000) square feet.

The final size of the detention pond has not been determined; it will be wet-bottomed.

A pre-annexation agreement with Shorewood is under consideration. A Chatham annexation was not desired.

Mr. Rybski requested that Mr. Kramer consider the septic needs of future commercial businesses that could locate on the property.

Mr. Kramer noted that Shorewood wanted the special use only on the storage portion of the property and that the property be subdivided to separate the storage use from the rest of the property.

Mr. Klaas made a motion, seconded by Mr. Guritz, to forward the proposal.

Ayes (8): Asselmeier, Briganti, Guritz, Holdiman, Klaas, Langston, Prochaska, and Rybski

Nays (0): None Present (0): None

Absent (2): Andrews and Chismark

The motion passed. The proposal will go to the Kendall County Regional Planning Commission on January 22, 2020.

Petition 19-39 John Dollinger on Behalf of Hansel Ridge, LLC, Jason Shelley on Behalf of Goproball, LLC, and James and Denise Maffeo

Mr. Kramer noted discussions with Shorewood for a plat of the site.

Mr. Kramer noted the private road at the south end of the site with a utility easement for future utility extensions.

The Petitioners agreed to do a sixty foot (60') right-of-way dedication as measured from the centerline of County Line Road. Ten feet (10') inside the right-of-way dedication would be available for utilities.

Shorewood requested that some of the fence be removed and replaced with buildings rearing County Line Road. The site plan will be revised to reflect this request.

The landscaping plan and signage plan needs more definition.

Mr. Kramer requested that the Petition advance to the Planning Commission and he will provide updated plans.

Mr. Klaas made a motion, seconded by Mr. Guritz, to forward the proposal.

Ayes (8): Asselmeier, Briganti, Guritz, Holdiman, Klaas, Langston, Prochaska, and Rybski

Nays (0): None Present (0): None

Absent (2): Andrews and Chismark

The motion passed. The proposal will go to the Kendall County Regional Planning Commission on January 22, 2020.

<u>Petition 19-47 Deb Chow on Behalf of Jade Restorations, Inc. and D. Howard on Behalf of Bullmastiff</u> Construction Company, LTD

Mr. Asselmeier summarized the request.

Jade Restorations, Inc. is working with Bullmastiff Construction Company to construct a kennel and veterinary clinic at the subject property. At this time, Jade Restorations, Inc. has no plans to sell the subject property.

The application material site plan, landscaping plan, photometric plan, and proposed building information were provided.

The property is approximately twenty (20) acres in size, but the special use portion would cover approximately eight point five (8.5) acres.

The future land use is commercial.

Ridge Road is a County Road classified as an Arterial Road. Bell Road is a Township Road classified as a Minor Collector. Minooka has a trail planned along Ridge Road. Shorewood has a trail planned along Bell Road.

The adjacent land uses are agricultural in all directions with a farmstead and landscaping business to the west.

The adjacent zoning are A-1 and A-1 SU. There is R-1 zoning within one half (1/2) mile to the east. There are twelve (12) homes located within one half (1/2) mile of the subject property. The special uses to the north and south are landing strips. The special use to the east is for natural gas compression. The special use to the west is for a landscaping business.

The EcoCat was submitted on December 5, 2019, and consultation was terminated.

The NRI application was submitted on December 18, 2019.

Seward Towship was emailed information on December 31, 2019.

The Minooka Fire Protection District was emailed information on December 31, 2019, and they wanted the Petitioner to be aware of the new kennel regulations regarding staffing and sprinkling.

The Village of Shorewood was emailed information on December 31, 2019. They expressed concerns regarding noise, but were comfortable with the County addressing those concerns.

The Village of Minooka was emailed information on December 31, 2019.

According to the information provided to the County, the Petitioners plan to offer veterinary services, pet daycare, boarding, and grooming services. The proposed hours of operation for both uses will be Monday through Friday from 6:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. The kennel will employ between fifteen and thirty (15-30) people per day and the veterinary will be employ between fifteen and twenty (15-20) people per day. The kennel will be staffed at all times. Grooming services will be provided as needed. Overlap in employees will occur. The maximum number of animals planned for the kennel forty (40). Per the Kendall County Zoning Ordinance, all animals will be indoors by sunset.

As noted in the site plan, the Petitioners plan to construct an approximately eighteen thousand (18,000) square foot building facing south towards Bell Road. The proposed location of the building on the property was placed in accordance to the setback requirements of the Kendall County Zoning Ordinance.

Elevations of the building and rendering of the site were provided.

As noted in building diagram, the building shall consist of waiting areas for grooming and exams, eight (8) exam rooms, a treatment room with pharmacy area, two (2) surgery rooms, an X-ray room, a recovery room, two (2) isolation rooms, a doctor's room, a staff room, a janitorial room, a cat boarding room, three (3) bathrooms, a laundry area, a grooming area, a store, a storage area, a groom kennel, two (2) play areas, a pool, and a boarding kennel area. The building is planned to be slightly over twenty-three feet (23') tall at its highest point and made of metal.

Two (2) approximately twelve thousand (12,000) square foot outdoor play areas are planned on both sides of the kennel wing of the building. A six foot (6') tall cedar fence would be located around the outdoor play area.

Building and Occupancy Permits will be required for the new building.

The site plan shows one (1) raised septic field west of the building and parking lot and one (1) raised septic field south of the parking lot. The proposed well would be located east of the building.

The site plan shows two (2) wet detention ponds on the north side of the subject property. A dual-phase restricted stormwater detention outlet is planned to discharge stormwater at the northwest corner of the site into ditches along the east side of Ridge Road.

If the special use permit is approved, the Petitioners would need to secure a stormwater management permit from Kendall County.

The property fronts Bell Road and two (2) points of ingress/egress are planned from Bell Road.

The Petitioners plan to dedicate right-of-way for a depth of fifty feet (50') along the entire Bell Road frontage of the property and a depth of seventy-five feet (75') along the entire Ridge Road side of the property.

The Petitioners propose to install a fifty-two (52) stall parking lot to the south and east of the building. Three (3) of the spaces would be handicapped accessible.

The Petitioners plan to install six (6) lights along the driveway and in the parking lot. The lights will be LED and on poles a maximum twenty feet (20') in height. There will be an additional eight (8) building mounted lights at various locations around the exterior of the building. Lighting information can be found on the photometric plan.

The Petitioners plan to have one (1) monument sign along Bell Road and one (1) monument sign along Ridge Road. Both signs are planned to be four feet by eight feet (4'X8') and a maximum of eight feet (8') in height. Neither sign will be illuminated.

Per the landscaping plan, the Petitioners plan to install thirty-eight (38) shade trees of various types, seventy-eight (78) evergreen trees of various types, sixty-eight (68) evergreen shrubs of various types, two hundred eighty-two (282) deciduous shrubs of various types, and one hundred fifteen (115) perennials of various types. In addition, a wet-to-mesic prairie seed mix is planned around the stormwater detention ponds.

Berms are planned along the west, east, and southeast corner of the property. An additional berm is planned south of the parking lot. The berms will vary in height from three feet (3') to seven feet (7').

A topsoil stockpile area is planned east of the parking lot.

Noise will be addressed with soundproofing of the building, the fence mentioned previously, the installation of trees and berms, and having the animals indoors by sunset.

The Petitioners plan to install a refuse enclosure at the northern end of the eastern parking lot. The screening shall be either of wood or masonry construction at least seven feet (7') in height. The Petitioners also indicated that they may screen the refuse area with a chain link fence and dense plantings.

If approved, this would be the sixth active special use permit for a kennel and second active special use for a veterinary establishment in unincorporated Kendall County.

Mr. Rybski asked about design engineering and soil analysis. Mr. Cook said that they have retained a septic engineer. Soil tests and percolation tests have not been completed. Mr. Rybski advised Mr. Cook of the requirement of a preliminary meeting with the Health Department regarding the septic system. Mr. Rybski advised Mr. Cook of the well monitoring requirements.

Mr. Klaas said that he was fine with the proposed right-of-way dedication.

Ms. Vickery said that she will review the Bell Road right-of-way dedication.

Mr. Holdiman advised Mr. Cook that the County adopted the 2018 versions of the International Codes.

Mr. Klaas asked if the building would have a basement. Mr. Cook said the building will be slab on grade.

Mr. Asselmeier asked if either business planned to have Saturday hours. Mr. Cook said that drop-offs and pick-ups would not occur on weekends. The clinic could have emergency hours on weekends.

Mr. Asselmeier asked when the landscaping will be installed. Mr. Cook said the landscaping timeline has not been determined. The goal is to open the business late in 2020 or early 2021.

Mr. Asselmeier asked about the frequency of refuse pick-up. Mr. Cook said that pick-up would occur a few times per week.

Mr. Klaas made a motion, seconded by Ms. Briganti, to forward the proposal.

Ayes (8): Asselmeier, Briganti, Guritz, Holdiman, Klaas, Langston, Prochaska, and Rybski

Nays (0): None Present (0): None

Absent (2): Andrews and Chismark

The motion passed. The proposal will go to the Kendall County Regional Planning Commission on January 22, 2020.

REVIEW OF PETITIONS THAT WENT TO COUNTY BOARD

Petition 19-26 regarding the landscaping business at 276 Route 52 was approved by the County Board.

Petition 19-31 regarding cannabis zoning regulations was approved by the County Board.

Petition 19-35 regarding a kennel at 3601 Plainfield Road was approved by the County Board.

OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Asselmeier noted that the Kendall County Regional Planning Commission's Annual Meeting will be Saturday, February 1st, at 9:00 a.m.

CORRESPONDENCE

None

PUBLIC COMMENT

None

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Guritz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Rybski, to adjourn. With a voice vote of all ayes, the motion carried. The ZPAC, at 9:50 a.m., adjourned.

Respectfully Submitted, Matthew H. Asselmeier, AICP Senior Planner

Encs.

0

KENDALL COUNTY ZONING & PLATTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE JANUARY 7, 2020

IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO BE CONTACTED ON FUTURE MEETINGS REGARDING THIS TOPIC, PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR ADDRESS OR EMAIL ADDRESS

NAME	ADDRESS (OPTIONAL)	EMAIL ADDRESS (OPTIONAL)
DAN KRANON 19-39/38/+39	gratiche Il	decenn dow Zenn law. com
MIKE GOOK	26316 MAPLEVIEW PLAINFIELD	mco. Dockerggroup

Matt Asselmeier

From:

Rodney Bradberry <rbradberry@minookafire.com>

Sent:

Monday, January 6, 2020 1:41 PM

To: Subject: Matt Asselmeier [External]FYI

Matt,

Just an FYI, I am sure you are aware of this; however, if not (see attachment) this location will be required staffed at all times or have a sprinkler system/fire alarm.

 $\underline{https://www.chicagotribune.com/news/breaking/ct-kennel-fire-safety-law-20190807-ytkwawanybfmroj6hb32yps2pq-\underline{story.html}$

Any questions please contact me.

Thanks.

Rodney Bradberry Fire Inspector

Minooka Fire Protection Distric 7901 E. Minooka Rd. Minooka IL 60447 Direct: 815-467-5637

Cell: 815-531-9967

- -

This email was Malware checked by UTM 9. http://www.sophos.com

Matt Asselmeier

From:

Engel_Natalie <nengel@vil.shorewood.il.us>

Sent:

Monday, January 6, 2020 5:29 PM

To: Cc: Matt Asselmeier Chrisse Kellev

Subject:

[External]ZPAC Meeting

Hi Matt,

Happy New Year!

Kelley and I will not be able to attend tomorrow's ZPAC meeting but wanted to provide some comments regarding the projects within 1 ½ miles of Shorewood's boundaries.

Petitions 19-37, 19-38 and 19-39

We met with Dan Kramer to discuss the projects. We provided some feedback and suggestions regarding the site layout and zoning uses. He was open to our comments and agreed to carry them back to his clients.

They will be submitting applications to the Village and we hope to bring forward their proposals for discussion at our February 5, 2020 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. I will touch base with you when we have applications and a staff report.

Petition 19-47

Our main concerns regarding the Doggy Day Care project are about noise impacts on the neighbors. We are comfortable that you are addressing these concerns so we defer to you on this project.

When the site and engineering plans are available, please have the applicants send over a copy to Shorewood so that we can determine whether they trigger our Subdivision and Development Ordinance.

Thank you Matt! Please let us know if you have any questions or need any information from us.

Natalie Engel, AICP

Village Planner



Village of Shorewood

One Towne Center Blvd | Shorewood, IL 60404 815.553.2314

This email was Malware checked by UTM 9. http://www.sophos.com